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portions of his extensive collection
entered the holdings of institutions such
as the Kalamazoo Valley Museum,
Michigan State University, Western
Michigan University, and the National
Museum of the American Indian.

Per Robert Sundick, forensic
anthropologist and professor at Western
Michigan University (April 1988), “The
artificial deformation of the skull may
be due to wrapping the skull as an
infant. The skull and mandible do not
work together so are from two different
individuals.” Originally it was thought
that two remains belonged to the same
person.

Cultural Affiliation

Based on the information available
and the results of consultation, cultural
affiliation is reasonably identified by the
geographical location or acquisition
history of the human remains.

Determinations

The Kalamazoo Valley Museum has
determined that:

e The human remains described in
this notice represent the physical
remains of two individuals of Native
American ancestry.

e There is a connection between the
human remains described in this notice
and the Confederated Salish and
Kootenai Tribes of the Flathead
Reservation.

Requests for Repatriation

Written requests for repatriation of the
human remains in this notice must be
sent to the authorized representative
identified in this notice under
ADDRESSES. Requests for repatriation
may be submitted by:

1. Any one or more of the Indian
Tribes or Native Hawaiian organizations
identified in this notice.

2. Any lineal descendant, Indian
Tribe, or Native Hawaiian organization
not identified in this notice who shows,
by a preponderance of the evidence, that
the requestor is a lineal descendant or
an Indian Tribe or Native Hawaiian
organization with cultural affiliation.

Repatriation of the human remains
described in this notice to a requestor
may occur on or after September 15,
2025. If competing requests for
repatriation are received, the Kalamazoo
Valley Museum must determine the
most appropriate requestor prior to
repatriation. Requests for joint
repatriation of the human remains are
considered a single request and not
competing requests. The Kalamazoo
Valley Museum is responsible for
sending a copy of this notice to the
Indian Tribes and Native Hawaiian

organizations identified in this notice
and any other consulting parties.
Authority: Native American Graves
Protection and Repatriation Act, 25
U.S.C. 3003, and the implementing
regulations, 43 CFR 10.10.

Dated: August 5, 2025.
Melanie O’Brien,
Manager, National NAGPRA Program.
[FR Doc. 2025-15407 Filed 8-13-25; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4312-52-P
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Notice of Inventory Completion
Amendment: University of Florida,
Florida Museum of Natural History,
Gainesville, FL, and Florida
Department of State, Tallahassee, FL

AGENCY: National Park Service, Interior.
ACTION: Notice; amendment.

SUMMARY: In accordance with the Native
American Graves Protection and
Repatriation Act (NAGPRA), the
University of Florida, Florida Museum
of Natural History (FLMNH) and Florida
Department of State have amended a
notice of inventory completion
published in the Federal Register on
December 5, 2023. This notice amends
the Indian Tribes or Native Hawaiian
organizations with cultural affiliation.

DATES: Repatriation of the human
remains and associated funerary objects
may occur on or after September 15,
2025.

ADDRESSES: Send written requests for
repatriation of the human remains and
associated funerary objects to Megan
Fry, University of Florida, Florida
Museum of Natural History, 1659
Museum Road, Gainesville, FL 32611,
email megan.fry@
floridamuseum.ufl.edu (primary contact
for this notice) and Téa Kaplan, Florida
Department of State, 2100 West
Tennessee Street, Tallahassee, FL
32304, email tea.kaplan@dos.fl.gov.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: This
notice is published as part of the
National Park Service’s administrative
responsibilities under NAGPRA. The
determinations in this notice are the
sole responsibility of the FLMNH and
Florida Department of State and
additional information on the
determinations in this notice, including
the results of consultation, can be found
in its inventory or related records. The

National Park Service is not responsible
for the determinations in this notice.

Amendment

This notice amends the determination
of cultural affiliation published in a
notice of inventory completion in the
Federal Register (88 FR 84359,
December 5, 2023). Repatriation of the
human remains and associated funerary
objects in the original notice of
inventory completion has not occurred.

Determinations

The FLMNH and Florida Department
of State has determined that:

e There is a connection between the
human remains and associated funerary
objects described in the original notice
and the Miccosukee Tribe of Indians;
Mississippi Band of Choctaw Indians;
Poarch Band of Creek Indians; Seminole
Tribe of Florida; and The Choctaw
Nation of Oklahoma.

Requests for Repatriation

Written requests for repatriation of the
human remains and associated funerary
objects in the original notice must be
sent to the authorized representative
identified in this notice under
ADDRESSES. Requests for repatriation
may be submitted by:

1. Any one or more of the Indian
Tribes or Native Hawaiian organizations
identified in this notice.

2. Any lineal descendant, Indian
Tribe, or Native Hawaiian organization
not identified in this notice who shows,
by a preponderance of the evidence, that
the requestor is a lineal descendant or
an Indian Tribe or Native Hawaiian
organization with cultural affiliation.

Repatriation of the human remains
and associated funerary objects
described in the original notice to a
requestor may occur on or after
September 15, 2025. If competing
requests for repatriation are received,
the FLMNH and Florida Department of
State must determine the most
appropriate requestor prior to
repatriation. Requests for joint
repatriation of the human remains and
associated funerary objects are
considered a single request and not
competing requests. The FLMNH and
Florida Department of State is
responsible for sending a copy of this
notice to the Indian Tribes and Native
Hawaiian organizations identified in
this notice and any other consulting
parties.

Authority: Native American Graves
Protection and Repatriation Act, 25
U.S.C. 3003, and the implementing
regulations, 43 CFR 10.10.
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Dated: July 28, 2025.
Melanie O’Brien,
Manager, National NAGPRA Program.
[FR Doc. 2025-15395 Filed 8-13-25; 8:45 am|
BILLING CODE 4312-52-P

INTERNATIONAL TRADE
COMMISSION

[Investigation No. 337-TA-1419]

Certain Exercise Equipment and
Subassemblies Thereof; Notice of
Issuance of a General Exclusion Order
and a Limited Exclusion Order;
Termination of the Investigation

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade
Commission.
ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that
the U.S. International Trade
Commission (‘“Commission’) has
determined to issue (1) a general
exclusion order (“GEQO”) prohibiting the
importation of products that infringe
claim 1 of U.S. Patent No. 8,721,511
(“the ’511 patent”) or the claim of U.S.
Patent No. D659,208 (‘“‘the D’208
patent”); and (2) a limited exclusion
order (“LEO”) prohibiting entry of
products that infringe claim 19 of the
’511 patent or the claim of U.S. Patent
No. D659,205 (“the D’205 patent”) that
are imported by or on behalf of certain
defaulting respondents. The
investigation is terminated.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Namo Kim, Esq., Office of the General
Counsel, U.S. International Trade
Commission, 500 E Street SW,
Washington, DC 20436, telephone (202)
205-3459. Copies of non-confidential
documents filed in connection with this
investigation may be viewed on the
Commission’s electronic docket (EDIS)
at https://edis.usitc.gov. For help
accessing EDIS, please email
EDIS3Help@usitc.gov. General
information concerning the Commission
may also be obtained by accessing its
internet server at https://www.usitc.gov.
Hearing-impaired persons are advised
that information on this matter can be
obtained by contacting the
Commission’s TDD terminal on (202)
205-1810.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The
Commission instituted this investigation
on September 27, 2024, based upon a
complaint filed on behalf of Balanced
Body, Inc. of Sacramento, California
(“Complainant”). 89 FR 7930607 (Sept.
27, 2024). The complaint, as
supplemented, alleged violations of
section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as
amended, 19 U.S.C. 1337 (‘“‘section

337”), based upon the importation into
the United States, the sale for
importation, and the sale within the
United States after importation of
certain exercise equipment and
subassemblies thereof by reason of
infringement of one or more of claims
1-15, 19-21, and 23-26 of the ’511
patent; the claim of the D’205 patent;
and the claim of the D’208 patent
(collectively, the “asserted patents”). Id.
The complaint further alleged that a
domestic industry exists. Id. at 79306.
The Commission’s notice of
investigation named as respondents:
Guangzhou Oasis, LLC d/b/a
trysauna.com of Boulder, Colorado
(“Trysauna”); Ciga Pilates of Hong
Kong; Shandong Tmax Machinery
Technology Co. Ltd. of Dezhou City,
China (“Tmax”); Shandong VOG Sports
Products Co. Ltd. of Dezhou City, China
(“VOG Sports”); Dezhou Bodi Fitness
Equipment Co., Ltd. of Dezhou City,
China (“Dezhou”); and Suzhou
Selfcipline Sports Goods Co., Ltd. of
Suzhou, China (“Selfcipline”). Id. at
79307. The Office of Unfair Import
Investigations (“OUII") is also a party to
this investigation. Id.

On March 10, 2025, the Commission
terminated the investigation as to
respondent Ciga Pilates based on
withdrawal of the complaint. Order No.
9 (Feb. 11, 2025), unreviewed by
Comm’n Notice (Mar. 10, 2025).

On April 9, 2025, the Commission
found the remaining respondents
Trysauna, Tmax, VOG Sports, Dezhou,
and Selfcipline (collectively,
“Defaulting Respondents”) in default.
Order No. 11 (Mar. 10, 2025),
unreviewed by Comm’n Notice (Apr. 9,
2025).

On April 16, 2025, the Commission
terminated the investigation as to claims
2—-15, 20-21, and 23-26 of the ’511
patent. Order No. 13 (Mar. 24, 2025),
unreviewed by Comm’n Notice (Apr. 16,
2025).

On April 30, 2025, the ALJ issued an
initial determination (Order No. 15)
(“ID”) granting-in-part and deferring-in-
part Complainant’s motion for summary
determination of violation of section
337. Specifically, the ID found a
violation by each of VOG Sports,
Dezhou, and Selfcipline with respect to
imported products infringing claim 1 of
the ’511 patent and the claim of the
D’208 patent. The ID also found that the
domestic industry requirement is
satisfied.

On May 9, 2025, Complainant filed a
notice of withdrawal of its request for a
GEOQ as to the claims on which the ALJ
deferred summary determination in the
ID. See Complainant’s Notice of
Withdrawal of Its Request for a General

Exclusion Order as to Certain Patent
Claims and Renewed Request for
Recommended Determination on
Remedy and Bond at 1.

On May 12, 2025, the ALJ issued an
order (Order No. 16) stating that
Complainant’s notice of withdrawal
resolved all issues pending before the
ALJ and the investigation is now in the
“remedy phase.” Order No. 16 and the
summary determination ID (Order No.
15) included a Recommended
Determination (“RD”’) recommending
that a GEO should issue as to claim 1
of the ’511 patent and the claim of the
D’208 patent, and that a one hundred
percent (100%) bond be set.

On May 14, 2025, the Commission
issued its post-RD notice seeking
submissions on public interest issues
raised by the relief recommended by the
AL]J should the Commission find a
violation. 90 FR 21509-10 (May 20,
2025). No responses were filed from the
public. On June 2, 2025, Complainant
filed a statement on the public interest
pursuant to Commission Rule
210.50(a)(4), 19 CFR 210.50(a)(4).

On May 30, 2025, the Commission
issued a notice determining not to
review the ALJ’s summary
determination ID (Order No. 15), and
requesting the parties to the
investigation, interested government
agencies, and any other interested
parties to file written submissions on
the issues of remedy, the public interest,
and bonding. 90 FR 23952-54 (June 5,
2025).

On June 13, 2025, Complainant and
QUII filed written submissions on
remedy, the public interest, and
bonding. On June 20, 2025, OUII filed
a reply to Complainant’s written
submission. No other submissions were
filed.

Having reviewed the record of the
investigation, including the RD and the
parties’ submissions, the Commission
has determined that the appropriate
remedy is (1) a GEO as to claim 1 of the
’511 patent and the claim of the D’208
patent; and (2) an LEO prohibiting entry
of products that infringe (i) claim 19 of
the ’511 patent as to respondents VOG
Sports, Dezhou, Selfcipline, and Tmax
or (ii) the claim of the D’205 patent as
to respondents Trysauna, VOG Sports,
Dezhou, Selfcipline, and Tmax.

The Commission has further
determined that the public interest
factors enumerated in subsections (d)
and (g) (19 U.S.C. 1337(d), (g)) do not
preclude issuance of the above
referenced remedial orders.
Additionally, the Commission has
determined to impose a bond of one
hundred percent (100%) of entered
value of the covered products during the
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